
 
Telephone Enquiries: Ben Caulfield,  
Email:  ben.caulfield@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Wednesday, 23 November 2022 

Page 1 of 2  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Special Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
Thursday, 1st December, 2022 at 3.00 pm, 
Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, Accrington 
 
Membership 
 
Chair: Councillor Josh Allen 
Vice-Chair:  Councillor Susan Hayes 
 
Councillors Noordad Aziz, Melissa Fisher, Zak Khan and Patrick McGinley 
Co-optees: Shahed Mahmood 
 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1   Apologies for Absence and Substitutions   
 
 

2   Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 
 

3   Minutes of the last Meeting  (Pages 3 - 8) 
 
To submit the minutes of the Special Scrutiny Committee held on 27th September for 
approval as a correct record. 
  
Recommended          -           That the minutes be received and approved as a 
correct record. 
 

Public Document Pack



Page 2 of 2 

 

4   Levelling Up Update  (Pages 9 - 14) 
 
To respond to the request from the Special Overview and Scrutiny Committee for a 
general update on the Council’s LUF bid and UKSPF allocation. 
 
Recommended - That Communities and Wellbeing Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee note the report. 
 

 
 



 
1 

 
SPECIAL SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

 
Tuesday, 27th September, 2022 

 
Present:  
 
 
 
In Attendance: 

Councillor Josh Allen (in the Chair),  
Councillors Noordad Aziz, Susan Hayes (Vice Chair), Zak Khan and 
Kate Walsh 
 
Councillors Kate Walsh and Marlene Haworth 
 

Apologies Melissa Fisher 

  

 
123 Apologies for Absence and Substitutions 

 
There were apologies for absence from Councillor Melissa Fisher. Councillor Bernard 
Dawson substituted. 
 

124 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
The Chair, Councillor Josh Allen, declared a personal interest in Item 6 – Town Centre 
Events on account of his membership of ACE. He indicated that to avoid any potential 
conflicts of interest, he would not take part in this item. 
 

125 Minutes of the last Meeting 
 
The Chair indicated that is this was the first meeting of the Special Scrutiny Committee, 
there were no previous minutes to approve. 
 

126 Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 
 
The Chair invited Ben Caulfield, Scrutiny and Policy Officer to present this item. 
 
Ben referred to the recommendations of the report, informing the committee that it was their 
role to approve their own work programme only, as indicated in section 2.3 of the report. 
 
He informed the group that the programme was created with consultation with all Service 
Heads and Councillors. Members of the public also had an opportunity to put forward 
suggestions, and the Chairs of the Committees met together with Cabinet members to seek 
their priorities going forward. 
 
Ben indicated that due to the very specific remit of this committee, specific meeting dates 
had not yet been scheduled as the Committee needed to be reactive as progress was 
made with Levelling up bids etc. 
 
Councillor Noordad Aziz asked if the Committee had a terms of reference. Ben informed the 
Committee that the terms of reference were set at the Council’s AGM in May 2022. 
 
Councillor Aziz asked the Committee to consider adding Investment Zones to the work 
programme and suggested this could perhaps be reviewed around November 2022. The 
Committee agreed that this item would fit their remit. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 
 
 

 

 
2 

Resolved - That the Special Scrutiny Committee approves its work 
programme for 2022/23 as outlined in the report with the addition of Investment 
Zones. 
 

127 Nomination of Co-optees 
 
The Chair invited Ben Caulfield, Scrutiny and Policy Officer to present this report. 
 
Ben referred to the recommendations of the report, indicating the Committee that it was 
there role to nominate potential co-optees for the committee, but ultimately it was a Council 
decision to appoint them. 
 
The report recommended that the Committee nominates Shaheed Mahmood and an 
individual young person from Ynot Aspire as co-optees to the Special Scrutiny Committee. 
 
Co-optees are members of the public, and their role is to add value to the committee. They 
have the same rights as normal members except for voting rights. 
 
The Chair indicated that he was keen for a young person to be co-opted on to the 
committee to bring a fresh outlook to scrutiny. 
 
The Committee were supportive of both nominations. 
 
Resolved - That the Special Scrutiny Committee recommends to Council 
the appointment of Shaheed Mahmood and an individual from Ynot Aspire be 
appointed as co-optees until the end of the 2023/24 municipal year.  
 

128 Town Centre Events 
 
The Chair indicated that due to the personal interest he had declared and any potential 
conflict of interest arising from this, he would leave the meeting at this point. The Vice 
Chair, Susan Hayes took over as Chair of the meeting. 
 
The Chair welcomed Councillor Marlene Haworth and Victoria Tindall to present the item. 
 
Victoria presented the report and spoke in detail on the thorough application process for 
funding and events. Applications are assessed against 4 primary objectives: 
 

- Increase visitors to the town centre (increase footfall) 
- Engage with people who live in and around Hyndburn 
- Create an event which can engage with the widest possible audience 
- Demonstrate value for money and maximise the event outcomes 

 
Victoria informed the Committee that both she and the portfolio holder have spent time 
looking at other area events and researching them for best practice, which she will use to 
help develop events in Hyndburn. 
 
Cllr Marlene Haworth indicated that there was a capacity issue. Some Councils have Town 
Teams which support the organisation of events, with others having a larger team of 
officers. The Council’s current team is Victoria plus an Events Coordinator, who supported 
over 100 event applications right through the ESAG process, which is resource intensive. 
Victoria agreed, indicating that there is much more she would like to do in terms of research 
and evaluation if capacity allowed. 
 

Page 4



 
 
 

 

 
3 

Councillor Zak Khan said it seemed from the report that there was a clear preference for 
larger scale events with big pull factors rather than smaller events, and he supported this. 
However, he did indicate that he would like to see a more robust evaluation of the events 
funded through the Council to get a clearer picture of what works and what does not. He 
also said he hoped the process of funding large events would be a catalyst for smaller 
events to pop up on their own without the need for Council funding. He also indicated that 
the list of event organisers seemed to be the same group of organisations over and over 
and suggested more could be done to encourage other groups or organisations to apply for 
events funding. 
 
Councillor Kate Walsh agreed with the need for more robust evaluation of events including 
customer feedback, and suggested the possibility of working with local education providers 
to work on evaluations. 
 
Councillor Noordad Aziz said a simple measure of asking people if they had a positive 
experience at strategic points around the town would also provide vital feedback. 
 
Victoria thanked members for their comments. She said that the Council’s ambition is for 
Accrington Town Centre to become a destination, where people will visit because they 
know there is always something going on.  
 
Resolved - That the Committee makes the following recommendations to 
Cabinet: 
 

- Cabinet considers providing additional resources to the Events Team to 
increase their capacity and ability to support events further. 

- Cabinet requests that the Portfolio Holder work with the Events Team  to 
come up with ways to improve data collection and the evaluation of events 
funded by the Council 

- Cabinet requests that the Portfolio Holder make contact with local 
colleges/education providers to support the above recommendation 

 
129 Accrington Town Centre Parking 

 
The Chair invited the Scrutiny and Policy Officer to present the report on Accrington Town 
Centre Parking. 
 
It was reported that the Lancashire County Council were invited to report to the Committee 
but had been unable to attend. However, the Portfolio Holder for Highways at Lancashire 
County Council had said he would respond to any questions from the Committee and 
consider any suggestions they may have for improvements to town centre parking. 
 
The Scrutiny and Policy Officer said the report was a simple document of information 
relating to the parking spaces available, both on and off street, in Accrington Town Centre 
and the time restrictions associated with these. Dave Turner, Engineer at Hyndburn 
Borough Council with responsibility for off street parking attended the meeting and provided 
some context. 
 
The current parking arrangements in Accrington Town Centre were introduced when the 
town centre was developed. Lancashire County Council initially put these in place for 
approximately 2 years and had stated that these would then be reviewed. He did not 
believe a review had been carried out. 
 
The Chair of the meeting indicated that he found parking arrangements in the town centre 
confusing, and residents had reflected these views to him. Residents had reported that it 

Page 5



 
 
 

 

 
4 

put them off using the Town Centre. The Chairs view was that there should be a consistent 
time restriction across all parking spaces of 3 hours. 
 
Committee members had mixed views on current arrangements. Councillor Aziz said that 
although he could see the benefit of a single time restriction, some businesses relied short 
term parking where a customer can quickly drop in and then move on, freeing up parking 
for other customers to use. He also said there was a danger if parking restrictions were 
removed fully that all town centre spaces would end up being taken by those working in the 
town centre and not those shopping or visiting local businesses. He thought no changes 
should be made to current arrangements without first consulting with local businesses. 
 
Cllr Walsh suggested a permit scheme be made available whereby town centre workers 
can park in certain areas for the full day. 
 
Cllr Khan said any review should consider increasing the amount of disabled parking 
spaces available in the immediate town centre. 
 
Cllr Dawson asked if a review had been carried out on the flow of traffic in the town centre, 
as this should also be considered if parking was to be reviewed. The Committee agreed. 
 
The Committee agreed that the Chair should write to Lancashire County Council and 
request that a review of parking and traffic flow in Accrington Town Centre be carried out at 
the earliest opportunity, ensuring that local businesses are consulted as part of the review. 
 
Dave Turner referred to an anomaly with off street parking that is car parks owned by 
Hyndburn Borough Council. Currently, all these car parks are available for all day parking 
with the exception of two (Cross Street and Abbey Street). These car parks have a Traffic 
Regulation Order for 3 hour parking. As Hyndburn Borough Council do not have a parking 
enforcement service, parking here is enforced by Ribble Valley Council at a cost to 
Hyndburn. Due to the costs associated, enforcement only happens on a very limited 
schedule. This can be confusing to users of the car parks and has no real benefit to the 
Council. 
 
The Committee agreed and supported the removal of the Traffic Regulation Order on these 
car parks, which would create consistency across all Hyndburn Council owned car parks in 
Accrington Town Centre. 
 
The Committee thanked Dave Turner for attending and offering advice to the Committee. 
 
Resolved -  
 
That the Chair of the Committee writes to the Portfolio Holder for Highways at 
Lancashire County Council, requesting: 
 

- A review of parking and traffic flow in Accrington Town Centre is carried out 
at the earliest opportunity 

- That the review includes consultation with local businesses to ensure their 
views are reflected in any changes made 

- That as part of the review, consideration be given to the views of members of 
this committee contained in the minutes of this meeting. 

 
 
That the Traffic Regulation Order limiting parking to 3 hours on the car parks off 
Cross Street and Abbey Street be removed, bringing the car parks in line with other 
Hyndburn Borough Council owned car parks. 

Page 6



 
 
 

 

 
5 

 
 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT TO: Special Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

DATE: 01 December 2022 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Miles Parkinson OBE - Leader of the Council 

REPORT AUTHOR: Steve Riley – Executive Director (Environment) 

TITLE OF REPORT: Levelling up Update 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

  

KEY DECISION: Options If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To respond to the request from the Special Overview and Scrutiny Committee for a 

general update on the Council’s LUF bid and UKSPF allocation. 
 

2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 That Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee note the report. 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 The Levelling Up Fund was announced at the 2020 Spending Review and will focus on 

capital investment in local infrastructure projects that require up to £20m of funding and 
builds on prior programmes such as the ‘Local Growth Fund’ and ‘Towns Fund’.  

 
3.2 The UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) is a Government-allocated fund which is 

intended to reduce inequalities between communities as part of the Government’s wider 
‘levelling up’ agenda. The fund was launched with the publication of its full prospectus on 
13 April 2022. 

 
3.3 Regular updates have been submitted to Cabinet and Council throughout 2021/22 and 

there are links to the various papers at the end of this report. 
 
 Stakeholders 
3.4 Following a previous bid for High Street funding, the Government appointed high street 

experts to work with around 20 Local Authorities, including Hyndburn, under a pilot project 
with the aim to help future bid submissions. Following a  review of the submission, visit 
to Accrington and discussion with stakeholders, the experts identified Accrington as 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 

having many strengths, particularly its heritage buildings and whilst acknowledging there 
was a huge amount of enthusiasm and support for the town, they felt the Council could 
improve its partnerships and communications with business leaders and wider 
community. To address this, a wide range of stakeholders were invited to form a new 
Town Centre Partnership Group, with the initial task of supporting the Council in 
submitting a bid into the LUF but over the longer term, the continued regeneration of 
Accrington Town Centre. 

 
3.5 The Stakeholder Group comprises representatives from the following organisations: 

Hyndburn Chamber of Trade, Hyndburn Independent businesses, 5 x Town centre (TC) 
businesses, Accrington Arndale, East Lancashire Chamber of Commerce, the Leader of 
Hyndburn Council and Leader of the Opposition, Chief Executive of Hyndburn Council, 
The MP for Hyndburn, Hyndburn Leisure, Accrington and Rossendale College, NISIAC, 
Lancashire Police, Lancashire County Council, Accrington Stanley Community Trust, 
Ynot Aspire, Accrington Town Team, Accrington Community Events Team.  

 
3.6 Above the Stakeholder Group, sits a Board chaired by David Sanderson, the Deputy Lord 

Lieutenant, and comprises the following organisations: Hyndburn Chamber of Trade, 
Hyndburn Independent businesses, Accrington and Rossendale College, East 
Lancashire Chamber of Commerce, NISIAC, Accrington Town Team, Leader of 
Hyndburn Council, Group Leaders and the MP for Hyndburn. 

 
Bid Writing Consultant 

3.7 With support of Cabinet, the Council appointed an external consultant Bradshaw Advisory 
(BA) who had been identified as an ‘expert’ in delivering successful bids and experience 
in understanding how the relevant Government Funding departments judge successful 
bids. 

 
3.8 BA were initially engaged to undertake two separate but linked projects. The first, to 

produce a 10/15 year strategic Town Centre Investment Plan, (TCIP) which will build 
on/update the currently adopted Accrington Area Action Plan. The second, was to 
develop and write the Council’s LUF bid. 

 
3.9 The consultant quickly made officers aware they believed the Council was not in a 

position to submit a bid into Round 1, (June 2021) and made a recommendation to the 
stakeholder group that they should instead focus on submitting a bid into Round 2. The 
stakeholder group acknowledged and supported the recommendation to work towards a 
Round 2 bid. 

 
3.10 Through engagement with the stakeholder group and resident consultation, the TCIP was 

supported by the Council in January 2022 and approved by Cabinet in March 2022. 
 
3.11 Cabinet has given its formal approval in support of the board’s recommendations that the 

Council’s LUF submission should focus around the following three principal interventions; 
  

1. Redevelopment to an area within the Indoor Market Hall and outdoor pavilions 
along Peel Street – the intervention known as Market Hall. 

2. Improvements and redevelopment to the properties of 43-59 Blackburn Road / 2-
4 Church Street – the intervention known as Market Chambers. 

Page 10



 

3. Improvements and redevelopment to the block 61-69 Blackburn Road – the 
intervention known as Burtons Chambers. 

 
3.12 Interventions 2 and 3 are not in the Council’s ownership and so Cabinet supported the 

appointment of CBRE, who are a nationally recognised property services consultant, to 
undertake acquisition discussions on behalf of the Council and Womble Bond Dickinson, 
to assist with the legal aspect of this work. 

 
3.13 Submission for LUF Round 2 had to be made on or before 6th July 2022, although this 

was extended by DLUHC due to the delay in the portal not being operational. Once open 
the Council’s 30k word LUF bid for £20m and accompanying 24 annexes were uploaded 
by the 27 July. 

 
3.14 Following the announcement of the UKSPF, the chair of the stakeholder board agreed to 

extend its remit to advise and make recommendations on this fund. To access 
Hyndburn’s allocation of £2,943,592, the Council had to submit a detailed Investment 
Plan setting out how it would spend the allocation for the period April 2022 to April 2025. 
The fund required authorities to engage local partners in the preparation of their 
investment plan which had to link to one or more the fund’s three main investment 
priorities. These are: 

 
1. Communities & Place - building pride in the community, restoring a sense of 

community and belonging and regenerating Town centres. 
2. Supporting Local Business - increasing pay, employment chances and 

productivity. 
3. People & Skills - supporting high quality skills and training. 

 
3.15 The board made a set of recommendations to the Council, which was presented to 

Cabinet on 22 June 2022, where they received full support. The Council’s UKSPF 
investment plan was submitted on the 1 August. 

 
3.16 In seeking further funding to support the LUF & UKSPF, Expressions of Interest, (EOI) 

were submitted to the Arts Council and National Lottery Heritage Fund. Whilst the EOI 
submission to the Arts Council was not successful, the proposal for £5m towards the 
Market Chambers LUF intervention to the National Lottery was successful and they have 
now invited the Council to submit a full application next year. 

 
 Work undertaken 
3.16 To date, the following work streams have been undertaken in relation to submissions for 

LUF, UKSPF, AC, NL funding and the TCIP: 
 

 Appointment of BA as lead consultant to produce a TCIP, write and submit the 
Council’s LUF bid and UKSPF investment plan. Work supporting these included 
provision of rental market reports, business plans, collation of statics, liaison with 
the Council to update stakeholder and members on progress. More recently, BA 
have commenced work around a TCIP funding strategy through the appraisal of 
different funding routes, including supporting the Council on Arts Council and 
National Lottery funding expression of interest (EOI) submissions. 

Page 11



 

 The creation of a stakeholder group and strategic board to oversee the production 
of the TCIP, the recommendations for Council’s LUF bid and UKSPF investment 
plan 

 Appointment of various consultants to provide professional services for the two 
submissions: 

o Architectural drawings to RIBA level 2 (conceptual designs for the bid 
submission) 

o Designs and costs for heating, electrical and decarbonising works 
o Cost estimates, project programme/risk register and production of a 

procurement strategy for the Council 
o Designs and costs for TC public realm improvements 
o Building condition and measured surveys 

 Resident consultations, polling and footfall counts 

 Appointment of property acquisition consultants to produce acquisition strategy, 
property costs estimates and discussions with property owners on behalf of the 
Council  

 Appointment of legal advisors to work with property acquisition consultant on 
behalf of the Council and provide specific legal advice on land acquisitions, 
subsidy control, CPO and an options appraisal on potential operator models. 

 Initial discussions with preferred framework provider 

 Published Prior Information Notice (PIN) and undertaken Soft Market Testing to 
commence identifying a preferred partner / operator for the Food/Drink offerings in 
the Market Hall and shared workspace offering in Burtons Chambers 

 Commenced work to identify a preferred Project Director to work on behalf of the 
Council in delivering the interventions 
 

 Costs and Income 
3.17 The cost of producing the TCIP and the Council’s LUF bid, ongoing property acquisition 

work / associated legal work, plus submitting the Council’s UKSPF investment plan and 
support on further funding opportunities for TCIP interventions is circa £395k (which is 
just 1.6% of a potential £24.5m funding the Council could receive). Other than critical 
work areas where not commencing could cause serious delays, officers are restricting 
further expenditure around the LUF interventions so reducing the financial risk to the 
Council.  

 
3.18 All eligible authorities have received £125k of capacity funding from the levelling up fund 

to support the development of LUF bids and the Council had set aside £150k from the 
Additional Restrictions Grant to create an Economic Recovery Fund. The remaining 
£120k has been allocated from underspends. That said, LUF guidance highlights for 
those authorities who are successful, any expenditure incurred from 1 April 2022 can be 
allocated from their funding. In addition, all authorities will receive an additional £20k of 
capacity funding from the shared prosperity fund (on top of their allocation) to support the 
cost of producing the investment plan when approved.  

  
  

Page 12



 

Announcements 
3.19 The initial date for the announcements of successful Round 2 LUF bids was 

September/October 2022. This was then delayed until the end of the calendar year, 
although talk from within DLUHC suggest an announcement may be at the end of 
November. 

 
3.20 Announcements concerning UKSPF were due to be made in September 2022 with first 

payments to authorities commencing October. This has also been delayed and most likely 
will now be along similar dates to the LUF announcement. 

  
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not Applicable 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 Portfolio holder 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 

None from this report 

Legal and human rights 
implications 

None from this report  

Assessment of risk None from this report 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  

None from this report 

 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 Property Acquisitions – LUF Interventions October 2022 (Exempt) 

https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2697&Ver
=4  

 
7.2 Levelling Up Funding bid update report to Cabinet – June 2022 

https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2695&Ver
=4 

 
7.3 Town Centre Investment Plan and UK Shared Prosperity Fund – June 2022 

https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2694&Ver
=4  

 
7.4 Town Centre Investment Plan and Levelling Up Funding bid submission – March 2022 

Page 13

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2697&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2697&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2695&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2695&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2695&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2694&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2694&Ver=4


 

 https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2617&Ver
=4  
 
7.5 Town Centre Investment Plan and Levelling Up Funding bid update report to full Council 

-January 2022 
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=2603&Ver
=4 

 
 
7.6 Levelling Up Funding Bid update report to Cabinet - September 2021 

https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2611&Ver
=4 

 
7.7 Appointment of an external consultant to work on the Council’s Levelling Up Fund bid – 

June 2021 
 https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2617&Ver
=4  
 
 
8. Freedom of Information 
 
8.1 The report does not contain exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, 

Schedule 12A and all information can be disclosed under the Freedom of Information 
Act 2000. 

 

Page 14

https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2617&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2617&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=2603&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=2603&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=2603&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2611&Ver
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2611&Ver
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2611&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2617&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2617&Ver=4

	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the last Meeting
	4 Levelling Up Update

